# 96-44431

Jerald L. Winters GOZZO HANES Rd. Bend, OR. 97702

Amendment "A"

Bi laws of Business Way Association for Business Way Condominiums 431 - 0785

1. Section 1. Definition, Paragraph 1.7: Shall now read:

"Owner" or "Unit Owner" shall mean and refer to all holders of fee title to any unit .

2. Section 3 Architectural Controls: Shall now read:

No improvement shall be erected, placed, altered, maintained or permitted to remain on any land subject to these bylaws except by the express written permission of the Association.

Section 9. Meeting of Unit Owners: 2nd sentence shall now read:
 Owners representing at least two thirds of the total number of units in the
 condominium shall be required to constitute a quorum.

4. Section 19. Insurance, Paragraph 19.2: Shall now read:

Insurance covering the legal liability of the Association, the unit owners individually, any officers, directors, employees, or agents of the Association, the public, and the unit owners and their invitees or tenants, incident to ownership supervision, control or use of the property. There may be excluded from the policy required under this paragraph, coverage of a unit owner, other than coverage as a member of the Association or Board, for liability arising out of acts or omissions of that unit owner and liability incident to the ownership or use of the part of the property as to which that unit owner has the exclusive use or occupancy. Liability insurance required under this paragraph shall be issued on a comprehensive liability basis and shall provide a cross liability endorsement providing that the rights of a named insurer under the policy shall not prejudice any action against another named insured.

The undersigned Chairman/Secretary of the Business Way Association hereby certifies that the amendments set forth above were adopted in accordance with the bylaws and the provisions of ORS 100.410.

Declarant

Jerald Winters

OFFICIAL SEAL

DAWN C ROBERTS

NOTARY PUBLIC - OREGON
COMMISSION NO. 046720
MY COMMISSION PRO. 046720
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUG. 31, 1999

## Amendment "A"

# Bi laws of Business Way Association for Business Way Condominiums

1. Section 1. Definition, Paragraph 1.7: Shall now read:

"Owner" or "Unit Owner" shall mean and refer to all holders of fee title to any unit .

2. Section 3 Architectural Controls: Shall now read:

No improvement shall be erected, placed, altered, maintained or permitted to remain on any land subject to these bylaws except by the express written permission of the Association.

- Section 9. Meeting of Unit Owners: 2nd sentence shall now read:
   Owners representing at least two thirds of the total number of units in the condominium shall be required to constitute a quorum.
- 4. Section 19. Insurance, Paragraph 19.2: Shall now read:

Insurance covering the legal liability of the Association, the unit owners individually, any officers, directors, employees, or agents of the Association, the public, and the unit owners and their invitees or tenants, incident to ownership supervision, control or use of the property. There may be excluded from the policy required under this paragraph, coverage of a unit owner, other than coverage as a member of the Association or Board, for liability arising out of acts or omissions of that unit owner and liability incident to the ownership or use of the part of the property as to which that unit owner has the exclusive use or occupancy. Liability insurance required under this paragraph shall be issued on a comprehensive liability basis and shall provide a cross liability endorsement providing that the rights of a named insurer under the policy shall not prejudice any action against another named insured.

The undersigned Chairman/Secretary of the Business Way Association hereby certifies that the amendments set forth above were adopted in accordance with the bylaws and the provisions of ORS 100.410.

Declarant

Jorald Winters

OFFICIAL SEAL
DAWN D ROBERTS
NOTARY PUBLIC - DREGON
COMMISSION NO. 046720
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUG. 31, 1999

The foregoing Amendment to the Bylaws is approved pursuant to ORS 100.410 this 2nd day of December, 1996.

SCOTT W. TAYLOR Real Estate Commissioner

By tun V.

#### BYLAWS OF

### **BUSINESS WAY ASSOCIATION**

#### FOR

### BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS

These Bylaws ("Bylaws") are made by Jerald Winters, ("Declarant"), as owner of the real property Deschutes County, State of Oregon, described as follows:

Lot Five (5), Block Onc (1), WILSON AVENUE BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK, Deschutes County, Oregon.

The property described is hereby subject to these Bylaws and shall be known as BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS (the "Condominiums").

The Condominiums are being developed as a commercial condominium. Except where these Bylaws conflict with any applicable government regulation, these Bylaws shall be binding upon all subject to these Bylaws and their successors in interest as set forth herein. In the event any of the development standards or use restrictions of these Bylaws should conflict with a more restrictive standard or requirement set by the applicable zoning ordinance of The City of Bend, the more restrictive standard or requirement of the applicable City of Bend ordinance shall apply.

## Section 1. DEFINITIONS;

- 1.1 "Association" shall mean the BUSINESS WAY ASSOCIATION, which is the unit owners association governing the operation of the condominium. The Association may be incorporated upon a majority vote of the owners but is not required to be incorporated.
- 1.2 "Bylaws" shall mean these bylaws of BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS and bylaws of the Association.
  - 1.3 "Condominium" or "Condominiums" shall mean BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS.
  - 1.4 "Declarant" shall mean the original Declarant or their successors in interest.
  - 1.5 "Declaration" shall mean the Declaration of Unit Ownership recorded with these Bylaws.
- 1.6 "Improvements" shall include, but not be limited to, any buildings, outbuildings, roads, driveways, parking areas, fences and barriers, retaining walls, stairs. decks, hedges, windbreaks, planting, planted trees or shrubs, signs, storage areas, and all other structures of exterior landscaping, vegetation or ground cover of every type and every kind above the land surface.

Page 1. BYLAWS

- 1.7 "Owner" or "Unit Owner" shall mean and refer to either all holders of fee title to any unit, or any other person or persons entitled to possession of the unit pursuant to a contract or lease.
- 1.8 "Plat" shall mean the recorded plat of BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS as recorded in the Official Records of Deschutes County and any subsequent recorded amendment.
- 1.9 "Street" or "street" shall mean any street, highway or other thoroughfare within or adjacent to the Condominiums and shown on any recorded subdivision or partition map, or survey map of record, whether designated thereon as street, boulevard, place, drive, road, terrace, way, lane, circle, or otherwise.
  - 1.10 "Unit" shall mean each commercial unit described on a Condominium plat.
- 1.11 "Deschutes County ordinance" or "ordinance of Deschutes County" shall mean the applicable county ordinance, or is the property is annexed into the City of Bend, the applicable city of Bend ordinance.

Any other word requiring a definition shall be interpreted as set forth in ORS chapter 100.

# Section 2. PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THESE BYLAWS:

- 2.1 Declarant hereby declares that all of the real property located in Deschutes County, Oregon described herein is and shall be hypothecated, encumbered, leased, occupied, built upon or otherwise used, improved or transferred in whole or in part subject to these Bylaws. All of said Bylaws are declared and agreed to be established with the purpose of protecting the desirability and attractiveness of said real property and every part thereof. All of the Bylaws run with all the said real property for all purposes and shall be finding upon and inure to the benefit of Declarant and all Owners and their successors in interest as set forth in these Bylaws.
- Section 3. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROLS: No improvement shall be erected, placed altered, maintained or permitted to remain on any land subject to these Bylaws except by the Association.

# Section 4. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF PROPERTY:

- 4.1 Occupancy. No owner shall occupy, use or permit the Owner's unit or any part thereof to be used for any purpose other than an allowed commercial/industrial use as provided by the applicable ordinances of Deschutes County. No unit shall be converted or divided into more than one commercial unit.
- 4.2 Appearance. Each unit within the Condominium and the surrounding area shall be maintained in a clean and attractive condition, in good repair and such a fashion as not to create a fire hazard.
  - 4.3 Interior Alteration. No alteration of any unit shall occur that may effect any bearing

Page 2. BYLAWS

walls, ceilings, roofs, foundations, columns, girders, beams, supports, main walls, without the express written permission of the Association. No alteration is allowed that may impair the structural integrity or mechanical systems of the Condominium or lessen the support of any portion of the Condominium.

- 4.4 Exterior Alteration. Nothing shall be altered of constructed in or removed from or fixed on the exterior of any unit except with the prior written consent of the Association.
- 4.5 Offensive Activity. No offensive activity shall be carried on nor shall anything be done which be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the other Owners.
- 4.6 Signs. All signage shall conform to the ordinance requirements of Deschutes County or as set forth by the regulation of the Association. Additionally, not more than one "For Sale" or "For Rent" sign placed by the Owner, the Declarant or by a licensed real estate agent, not exceeding twenty-four (24) inches high and thirty-six (36) inches long, may be temporarily displayed from a window from inside a Unit or attached outside to the Unit. This restriction shall not prohibit the temporary placement of political signs by the Owner in the windows of the Owner's Unit. During the period of Declarant control, Declarant may place "For Sale" signs in the common elements.
- 4.7 Exterior Lighting or Noise Making Device. No exterior lighting or noise making device shall be placed on a Unit or any portion thereof which may annoy other Owners without the Association's prior written consent.
- 4.8 Antennas. No television antenna, radio antenna, satellite antenna, or other receiving or transmitting device shall be placed outside any unit without the Association's prior written consent.
- 4.9 Limitation of Transfer. No owner shall transfer either by conveyance, contract of sale or lease any interest on the Owner's Unit which would result in ownership of such Unit being held by more than ten persons.
- 4.10 Utilities. No utility connections shall be made without the prior written consent of the Association.
- 4.11 Parking. Motorhomes, campers, camping trailers, trucks, boats, and boat trailers may not be parked outside of a unit for any period of time.
  - 4.12 Open Burning. No open burning of any type shall be allowed.
- 4.13 Animals. No Animals, livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot, except that of a reasonable number (not to exceed two total) of dogs, cats, or other household pets may be kept provided that they are not kept, bred or maintained for commercial purposes and are reasonably controlled so as not to be a nuisance.

- 4.14 Commercial or Business Use. No activity of any kind shall be conducted on any lot, nor shall any goods, equipment, vehicles, materials, or supplies used in connection with any trade, service, or business be kept or stored within any unit which violated the ordinance of Deschutes County.
- 4.15 Vehicles in Disrepair. No Owner shall permit any vehicle which is in an unreasonable state of disrepair or to be abandoned or to remain parked upon anywhere outside the Owner's own unit or on any street for a period in excess of forty-eight (48) hours. A vehicle shall be deemed to be in an "unreasonable state of disrepair" when due to it's continued inoperability or significant damage, reasonably offends the occupants of the Condominiums or Declarant. This provision shall not be construed as to prohibit Owner from storing a vehicle in an unreasonable state of disrepair inside Owner's unit.
- 4.16 Private and Public Utility Easements depicted on Plat. Easements for installation and maintenance of utility lines and drainage facilities are reserved as specified on the recorded plat of the Condominiums and shall continue in perpetuity. Said easements are intended to, and do attach to and run with the land affected herein.
- 4.17 Each unit owner may use the common elements in accordance with the purposes for which they are intended, but may not hinder or encroach upon the lawful rights of the other unit owners.
- Section 5. DECLARANT'S CONTROL: Declarant hereby reserves special control as described in these Bylaws and shall administer the Association until such time as Declarant terminates Declarant's control. Declarant shall serve as the Board of Directors of the Association. At such time as the Declarant shall no longer desire to exercise control over the Condominium as provided herein, Declarant shall turnover control to the Association. Termination of Declarant's role shall not occur later than December 1, 1996, or the date four units are conveyed to person's other than Declarant, at which time the right of control shall automatically pass to the Association. No other resignation by Declarant shall be required.

### Section 6. FORMATION OF ASSOCIATION:

- 6.1 Turnover Meeting: A turnover meeting shall be called by the Declarant within 90 says of the expiration of any period referenced in Section 5 to turn over control of the Association to the unit owners. This meeting shall be the initial meeting.
- 6.1.1 Notice of the turnover meeting shall be given by Declarant at least seven (7) but not more than fifty (50) days prior to the turnover meeting. The notice shall state the purpose of the meeting and the time and place where it is to be held. If the meeting is not called by the Declarant within the time specified, the meeting may be called and notice given by any unit owner or any first mortgagee of a unit.
- 6.1.2 At the turnover meeting the Declarant shall relinquish control of the administration of the Association and the unit owners shall assume control; the unit owners shall elect a board of

directors in accordance with these bylaws; and the Declarant shall deliver to the Association the following:

- 6.1.2.1 Original or photocopy of the recorded Declaration and Bylaws of the of the Condominium and any supplements and amendments thereto;
- 6.1.2.2 All records of the Association including minutes, rules and regulations promulgated, if any;
- 6.1.2.3 A report of the present financial condition of the Association consisting of a balance sheet and income and expense statement for the preceding 12-month period or the period following the recording of the Declaration, whichever is less;
- 6.1.2.4 Association funds or control thereof, including, but not limited to, any bank signature cards;
- 6.1.2.5 All tangible personal property that is property of the Association and an inventory of such property;
- 6.1.2.6 If available, a copy of the as-build architectural, structural, engineering, mechanical, electrical and plumbing plans; the original specifications indicating thereon all material changes; the plans for underground site service, site grading, drainage, and landscaping together with cable television drawings; and any other future plans and information relevant to future repair or maintenance of the property;
- 6.1.2.7 All insurance policies; copies of any occupancy permits which have been issued for the Condominium, any other permits issued by governmental bodies applicable to the Condominium in force or issued within one year prior to the date the unit owners assume control of the administration of the Association;
- 6.1.2.8 A list of the general contractor and the subcontractors responsible for construction or installation of the major plumbing, electrical, mechanical, and structural components of the common elements;
- 6.1.2.9 A roster of unit owners and their addresses and telephone numbers, if known, as shown on the records of the Declarant;
  - 6.1.2.10 Copies of any leases to which the Association is a party;
- 6.1.2.11 Employment or service contracts in which the Association is one of the contracting parties or service contracts in which the Association of the unit owners have an obligation or responsibility, directly or indirectly, to pay some or all of the fee or charge of the person performing the service, and any other contracts to which the Association is a party;

- 6.2 In order to facilitate an orderly transition, during the 90 day period following the turnover meeting, the Declarant or an informed representative shall be available to meet with the Board of Directors on at least three mutually acceptable dates to review the documents delivered as provided in paragraph 6.1.
- 6.3 If the Declarant has complied with the terms of paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2, unless the Declarant otherwise has sufficient voting rights as a unit owner to control the Association, the Declarant shall not be responsible for the failure of the unit owners to comply with paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 and the Declarant shall be relieved of any further responsibility for the administration of the Association except as a unit owner of any unsold unit.

## Section 7. ASSOCIATION POWERS:

- 7.1 Membership in the Association shall be limited to unit owners.
- 7.2 The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a board of directors as provided herein.
- 7.3 Subject to the provisions of the Declaration and Bylaws, the Association may, whether or not the Association is unincorporated:
  - 7.3.1 Adopt and amend bylaws and rules and regulations;
- 7.3.2 Adopt and amend budgets for revenues, expenditures and reserves and levy and collect assessments for common expenses from unit owners;
- 7.3.3 Hire and terminate managing agents and other employees, agents and independent contractors;
- 7.3.4 Institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings in its own name on behalf of itself or on behalf of two or more unit owners on matters affecting the Condominium;
  - 7.3.5 Make contracts and incur liabilities;
- 7.3.6 Regulate the use, maintenance, repair, replacement and modification of common elements;
  - 7.3.7 Cause additional improvement to be made as a part of the common elements;
- 7.3.8 Acquire by purchase, lease, devise, gift or voluntary grant real property or any interest therein and take, hold, possess and dispose of real property or any interest therein;

- 7.3.9 Impose and receive any payments, fees or charges for the use, rental or operation of the common elements.
- 7.3.10 Impose charges for late payments of assessments, attorney fees for collection of assessments and, after giving notice and an opportunity to be heard, levy reasonable fines for violations of the Declaration, bylaws and rules and regulations of the Association;
- 7.3.11 Adopt rules regarding the termination of utility services paid for out of assessments of the Association and, after giving notice and an opportunity to be heard, terminate the rights of any owners to receive such services until the correction of any violation covered by such rule has occurred;
- 7.3.12 Impose reasonable charges for the preparation and recordation of amendments to the Declaration or statements of unpaid assessments;
- 7.3.13 Provide for the indemnification of its officers and executive board, as may be limited by ORS 61.218(3) (d) (1987 Replacement Part), and maintain director's and officers liability insurance;
- 7.3.14 Exercise any other powers conferred by the Declaration or Bylaws and all other powers determined by the Association; and exercise any other powers determined by the Association to be necessary and proper for the governance and operation of the Association.
- 7.4 Subject to paragraph 7.5, unless expressly prohibited by the Declaration, the Association has the authority to execute, acknowledge, deliver and record on behalf of the unit owners leases, easements, rights of way, licenses and other similar interests affecting the general common elements and consent to vacation of roadways within and adjacent to the Condominium.
- 7.5 The granting of a lease in excess of two years or any other interest of consent pursuant to subsection 7.4 shall be first approved by unanimous consent of all unit owners.
- Section 8. AMENDMENT: The Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the unit owners. A copy of any amendment adopted by the Association shall be signed by the Board, notarized and recorded in the Official Records of Deschutes County referencing said amendment as "Amendment to Bylaws of BUSINESS WAY CONDOMINIUMS."
- 8.1 No Amendment shall be valid which requires more than a majority vote of the unit owners except for amendments relating to age restrictions, pet restrictions, limitation on the number of persons who may occupy units and limitations of the rental or leasing of units.
- 8.2 Amendments relating to age restrictions, pet restrictions, limitation on the number of persons who may occupy units and limitations of the rental or leasing of units shall require a unanimous vote of the unit owners.

8.3 For five years after recording the initial Bylaws, before any amended bylaws or amendment to a Bylaw may be recorded, it must be approved by the Oregon Real Estate Commissioner, if required by law. The Association shall pay any fee required by this paragraph 8.3.

Section 9. MEETING OF UNIT OWNERS: The board of Directors or three unit owners may call a meeting of the unit owners by sending a notice not less than twenty (20) nor more than fifty (50) days prior to such meeting to each of the other unit owners. Owners representing at least 75% of the total number of units in the Condominium shall be requires to constitute a quorum. Additionally, the Board shall annually call a meeting within 60 days of, before or after, the anniversary of the turnover meeting ("annual meeting"). Meetings of the unit owners shall be conducted in a manner to give respect to all present and to allow each unit owner a reasonable opportunity to be heard. Minutes of all unit owner meetings shall be maintained in the records of the Association. Notice of meetings of unit owners shall include an agenda of items to be discussed. No matter requiring the vote of the unit owners may be voted upon which was not clearly identified in the notice except by unanimous vote of all unit owners and not merely all unit owners present.

Section 10. VOTING: Each unit shall be entitled to one vote. No fractions of a "unit vote" shall be allowed. If the owners of a unit cannot agree on how to cast their vote, then the vote shall not be counted though the unit shall be deemed present for the purpose of constituting a quorum. If a person owns more than one unit, the person may cast as many votes as the number of units the person owns. In these Bylaws, "majority vote" shall mean the majority of the quorum present. If at any time during a meeting a quorum is no longer present then the meeting must be adjourned until a meeting can be called with a quorum. Meetings can be adjourned for periods of not more than eight (8) hours without additional notice being required. The secretary shall record in the minutes how each unit voted on the measures before the Association except that the election of the Board shall be by secret ballot. Unless specifically stated to the contrary, the Board or the Association can make a decision upon a majority vote.

Section 11. ELECTION OF A BOARD OF DIRECTORS: An initial Board of Directors, consisting of three unit owners, shall be elected at the turnover meeting and each year at the annual meeting. The term of office shall be one year or until the next annual meeting, whichever comes first. Election shall be by position: "Director 1, Director 2, and Director 3". Election shall be held

first for Director 1, then for Director 2. and finally for Director 3. All unit owners may vote for each position. Any vacancy in a Board position shall be filled within 60 days of the occurrence of the vacancy by a vote of the unit owners at the annual or a special meeting.

Section 12. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD: The Board shall have the power to administer the day-to-day activities of the Association. The Board may enter into contracts as allowed by these bylaws which do not require unanimous consent or specific consent of the unit owners. Any matters requiring unanimous consent of the unit owners may be made only after a discussion at an annual or special meeting and only in writing signed by all unit owners. The Board shall cause to be prepared, and shall file, any tax returns required by law. The Board shall

serve without compensation, however, upon majority approval of unit owners, the Board member's expenses may be reimbursed.

Section 13. BOARD MEETINGS: The Board shall determine between themselves how Board meetings are to be conducted. The Board shall meet as necessary to conduct the business of the Association. Minutes of Board meetings shall be kept with the records of the Association. All Board meetings shall be open to the unit owners. Board meetings may be called by any Board member. Notice of Board meetings shall be delivered or mailed to each unit owner no less than 72 yours prior to the meeting. In the case of emergency only, Board meetings may be held by telephonic communication and to the reasonable notice to unit owners of not less than 24 hours. Only business that is truly an emergency may be conducted at an emergency meeting. Tow Board members constitutes a quorum.

Section 14. REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBER: Any Board member may resign in writing submitted to the Board and a copy of such resignation sent to each unit owner by hand deliver or regular US Mail. A majority vote of the unit owners at any annual or special meeting of the unit owners shall be required to remove a Board member from the position on the Board. No cause for removal is necessary.

Section 15. OFFICERS: The board shall choose between themselves a presiding officer, a secretary and a treasurer. No board member shall hold more than one such office except in cases of removal of a Board member and the vacancy has not yet been filled.

# Section 16. MAINTENANCE:

16.1 The maintenance, upkeep and repair of the common elements shall be contracted for by the Association annually and as needed. Any personnel employed, other than independent contractors, shall only be made after a majority vote of the unit owners. Payments shall be made upon receipt of billings and from an account owned by the Association and approved by the Board.

## Section 17. ASSESSMENT:

- 17.1 At the annual meeting the unit owners shall decide by majority vote the amount and payment schedule of the annual assessment. The Assessment shall be due and payable on the date set by the unit owners at the annual meeting. No assessment shall be larger than necessary for the maintenance, insurance, upkeep, repair or replacement of the improvements existing at the time of the Declaration, and an additional contingency fund of not more than 15 % more than necessary for the matters listed herein. Any new improvement shall require the unanimous consent of the unit owners.
- 17.2 Declarant expressly elects to defer payment of the accrued assessment for any unit until the time of conveyance of that unit to someone other than the Declarant.

Section 18. DELINQUENT ASSESSMENTS: Any unpaid or overdue assessments shall be

Page 9. BYLAWS

collectable upon ten day's written notice to the unit owner. If the overdue assessment is not paid, then the Association may sue the unit owner in the appropriate court of law. All costs of collection, including but not limited to attorney fees at trial and on appeal, a shall be added to the assessment. As an alternative to the procedure set fourth herein, the Association may lien the property as provided by ORS chapter 100. The unit owner shall remain personally liable for all assessments, though a judgment or lien may attach to the unit or any other real or personal property of the unit owner.

- Section 19. INSURANCE: The Association shall have sole authority to decide whether to repair or reconstruct a unit that has suffered damage or that a unit must be repaired or reconstructed. The Board shall obtain and maintain at all times and shall pay for out of the common expense fund, the following insurance covering both the common elements and individual units:
- 19.1 Property insurance including, but not limited to, fire, extended coverage, vandalism, and malicious mischief; and
- 19.2 Insurance covering the legal liability of the Association, the unit owners individually, any officers, directors, employees, or agents of the Association, the public, and the unit owners and their invitees or tenants, incident to ownership, from the policy required under this paragraph, coverage if a unit owner, other than coverage as a member of the Association or Board,

for liability arising out of acts or omissions of that unit owner and liability incident to the ownership or use of the part of the property as to which that unit owner has the exclusive use or occupancy. Liability insurance required under this paragraph shall be issued on a comprehensive liability basis and shall provide a cross liability endorsement providing that the rights of a named insured under the policy shall not prejudice any action against another named insured.

### Section 20.1 ASSOCIATION RECORDS:

- 20.1 The association shall retain the documents, information and records delivered to the Association at the turnover meeting. The Association shall keep financial records sufficient for proper accounting purposes. Within 90 days after the end of the fiscal year, the Board shall distribute to each unit owner a copy of the annual financial statement consisting of a balance sheet and income and expense statement for the preceding year. The documents, information, and records of the Association shall be reasonably available for examination by a unit owner and any mortgagee of a unit. "Mortgagee" includes the beneficiary of a trust deed or vendor of a land sale contract.
- 20.2 At the same time the Board distributes the annual financial statement, the Board shall file an Annual Report and any amendment with the Real Estate Agency in accordance with ORS 100.250.

## Section 21. ENFORCEMENT:

- 21.1 The Bylaws shall be specifically enforceable by Declarant, the Association or by any unit owner. Any breach of the Bylaws shall subject the breaching party to any and all legal remedies, including damages or the destruction, removal or the enjoining of any offending improvement or condition. All unit owners are bound by these Bylaws.
- 21.2 In the event either party engages an attorney to enforce these Bylaws or any of its terms, whether or not a suit or action is commenced, it is agreed that the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all expenses reasonably incurred before, at and after trial and on appeal whether or not taxable as costs, including, without limitation, attorney fees, witness fees (expert and otherwise), copying charges, deposition expenses, and other charges to be paid by the losing party to the prevailing party and to be fixed by the trail and appellate courts.

Section 22. RULES AND REGULATIONS: The Board may adopt reasonable rules and regulations regarding the use of common elements and shall distribute a complete list of said rules and regulations, with the date the rules become effective. Such rules or regulations shall not unreasonably interfere with the use of units and limited common elements by their respective unit owners, or with the use of the general common elements by the several unit owners. The Association shall not have the power to levy fines for the breach of any rule or regulation, but may apply for any other legal remedy, including but not limited to injunction.

### Section 23. DURATION:

The Bylaws shall continue to remain in full force and effect at all times within respect to all property, and each part thereof, now or hereafter made subject thereto (subject however, to the right to amend and repeal as provided for therein) from the date these Bylaws are recorded. Should the Declaration be terminated as provided by Oregon law, these Bylaws shall also terminate. These Bylaws shall run with the land included in the Condominium and shall bind, benefit and burden all real property and improvements and shall inure to the benefit and shall bind Declarant, all successors and assigns of Declarant and all unit owners, their successors, assigns, heirs, administrators, executors, mortgagees, lessees, invitees or any other party claiming or deriving any right, title, or interest or use in or to any real property in the Condominium. The use restrictions and regulations set forth herein shall be binding upon all unit owners, their successors in interest, including any person who holds such interests as security for the payment of an obligation including any mortgagee or other security holder in actual possession of any lot by foreclosure or otherwise and any other person taking title from such security holder.

DECLARANT:

JERALD WINTERS

STATE OF OREGON

) ss.

County of Deschutes

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Jerald Winters, this day of

-January 1995. October 1995

OFFICIAL SEAL
JOEN PATCHING
NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON
COMMISSION NO. 035607
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JIN 16, 1998

Notary Public for Osegon
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF OREGON ) SS. COUNTY OF DESCHUTES )

I, MARY SUE PENHOLLOW, COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER OF CONVEYANCES, IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT WAS RECORDED THIS DAY:

96 DEC -4 PM 2: 38

MARY SUE PENHOLLOW COUNTY CLERK

Page 12. BYLAWS

M. M. DEPUTY

NO 96-44431

FEE .... /C

DESCHUTES COUNTY OFFICIAL RECORDS